Plymouth Safeguarding Adults Board

Friday 30 January 2015

PRESENT:

Andy Bickley, in the Chair.

Geoff Baines, Sue Baldwin, Lorna Collingwood-Burke, Matt Garrett, Karen Grimshaw, Julian Mouland, DS Paul Northcott, Dave Simpkins, Phil Smale, Tony Staunton, Jane Elliott Toncic and Councillor Tuffin.

Apologies for absence: Carole Burgoyne, Mandy Cox, Greg Dix, Paul Francombe, Mike French, Judith Harwood, Kelechi Nnoaham, Antonia Reynolds and Georgia Webb.

Also in attendance: Amelia Boulter – Democratic Support Officer.

Note: At a future meeting, the Board will consider the accuracy of these draft minutes, so they may be subject to change. Please check the minutes of that meeting to confirm whether these minutes have been amended.

27. Chair's Introduction

Andy Bickley welcomed everyone to the meeting. As the new Chair he reported that a lot of preparatory work had taken place outside of this meeting to look at the direction for this board and this included a business plan, finance plan, impact of the Care Act, service delivery and what this board supports. The Chair reported that he's passionate about the safeguarding agenda and looking at a whole family approach to safeguarding. This was an opportunity to align the way this board works with regard to the children's agenda.

The Chair gave thanks to Jim Gould for his work as previous Chair and extended thanks to Geoff Baines for managing the transition and the support to this board prior to his arrival. There was a huge programme of work for this board and to get a handle on all the implications and complexities of need. The landscape was changing and the Chair requests the board's support to achieve the right outcomes.

This board needs to have a clear identity and to identify the purpose of the board, what difference this board will make, and as board members what do you want to take away with you? It was really important that if any agency was struggling that this board provides support to that agency. The business plan would set out the ambition and vision for this board and the Chair asks the board for feedback and challenge on the plan.

Agreed that the Plymouth Safeguarding Adults Board Business plan is signed off in April 2015.

28. Minutes and Matters Arising

Agreed that the minutes of the meeting held on the 3 October 2014 be confirmed.

Matters Arising

- Minute 19 self-assessment. The board would receive an update later in the agenda.
- Minute 20b making safeguarding personal. A single agency working group had been established with planned meetings set up. Meeting with lan Lightley on how this will link with the integrated service. This action is on-going.
- Minute 20b (2) linking with PSCB. Action on-going.
- Minute 20c (I) Peer challenge. Action completed.
- Minute 20c (2) Peer challenge. Yet to establish an interface. Action ongoing.
- Minute 20d (1) Serious Self Neglect. The person in mind no longer has the capacity to be the Champion. Action on-going.
- Minute 24 Any Other Business
 - Safeguarding leaflet a copy of the leaflet, 'Safeguarding Adults Everybody's Business was circulated to board members and was also available on the website for partners to access.
 - Representative from the voluntary and community sector (VCS) to sit on the board. This has been explored and not yet identified someone to represent the VCS on the board. Discussions had taken place with Healthwatch and through those discussions may identify a suitable person.

29. **Declarations of Interest**

In accordance with the code of conduct the following declarations were made -

| Name | Reason | Interest |
|--------------|---|----------|
| Andy Bickley | SCR Review CS – previous role was lead officer on the | Personal |
| | preparation for the inquest. Geoff Baines to take the Chair | |
| | when this item is discussed. | |
| Lorna | Member of the Devon Safeguarding Board. | Personal |
| Collingwood- | Spouse - GP Principal Wallingbrook Health Group — | |
| Burke | primary medical services (PMS) and alternative primary | |
| | medical services (APMS) contracts holder and Devon | |
| | Health shareholder B.B.B.W.B Ltd shareholder and | |
| | director. | |
| | Healthcare premises company. Prescribed | |
| | Specialised Services Advisory Group (PSSAG) | |
| | Shareholder in Devon Health 2 | |
| | Chair, NHS Northern, Eastern and Western Devon | |
| | Clinical Commissioning Group (NEW Devon CCG) | |
| | Member of Devon Health and Wellbeing Board | |
| | Wallingbrook Health Group Practice Partner is | |
| | | |
| | Chair of Devon Health 2 | |

30. Safeguarding Manager's Report

Jane Elliot Toncic provided the board with the Safeguarding Manager's Report. It was reported that –

Peer Challenge

The Peer Challenge was completed in early December and final report received in January. The following comments were raised -

- interesting and useful process to undertake and feedback received was very helpful. The Peer Challenge raised issues that the Board needs to focus on and an action plan to be developed and shared;
- the Peer Challenge covered a number of areas and was a great starter for developing the board priorities for this year;
- good representation from a range of providers although a commitment from GPs would be something to address;
- the Chair welcomed colleagues observations on the membership for this board.

Financial Abuse

It was reported that there had been a lot of activity and awareness on financial abuse. Multi-agency training was taking place in February to highlight financial abuse and an additional training session would be provided for the voluntary and community sector.

The National Scams Hub sends out performance data and there were currently 148 local authorities signed up. It was reported that the average age of people scammed was 73.9 years. There were various ways that people get exploited from distraction burglary and mail scams; people feel ashamed of being scammed and often this crime will go unreported. Is this an issue the board would like to focus on or raise awareness of?

In response to the questions raised, it was reported that -

- there were currently 600 people that were suspected of being targeted since the National Scams Hub had been in operation;
- reputable firms were selling loans with no legal comeback;
- people didn't recover well from this type of abuse, and were likely to need support from the health and social care system much earlier;

• the SAB Conference was now taking place on 12 June and would like support for this conference from the board.

<u>Agreed</u> that before the PSAB makes a decision on whether to progress financial abuse as a priority, this board needs to have an understanding on the scale of financial abuse for Plymouth.

Care Act Update

A working group was set up in preparation for the Care Act. A draft SAB checklist was drawn up and this board needs to look at compliance and membership. It is a requirement for all members of the board to have a Designated Adult Safeguarding Manager (DASM). A request was made for organisations to forward details of their nominated person for this role to the Safeguarding Manager.

Agreed that the Chair and Jane ElliottToncic to meet to look at the implications of the Care Act for the PSAB.

PAUSE Update

PAUSE meeting took place on 12 January. It was reported that -

- they were interviewed as part of the Peer Review, and the group reported as being happy with the current arrangements to provide a voice on the board, to have links with the PSAB Chair and for the Chair to attend their meetings;
- they disagreed that commissioning should be supporting them more with issues of quality, and stated that they wanted to retain ownership of the piece of work they were doing in relation to concerns about quality of Dom Care provision. They were aware how to access the support that had been offered;
- they want to expand their membership to include people from a variety of areas and would welcome opportunities to raise their awareness of their profile and purpose;

The Chair added that it was great to have this group and it would be an asset for this board to help shape the group. There was also a need to explore what other boards were doing with their user groups.

31. **PSAB Performance Indicators Work Stream**

Julian Mouland provided the board with an update on the self-audit. The board was assessed against 6 topics –

- Leadership
- Organisational Responsibilities
- Workforce
- Interagency Working
- Issues of Diversity
- Empowerment

A good response to the audit with an overall scoring was 70% green, 23% amber and some areas red. The audit identified some common areas and a task and finish group to address this. Julian thanked everyone for their involvement.

Agreed that -

- 1. Use audit information to inform the 2015/16 PSAB strategic plan priorities.
- 2. Board Partners take appropriate action in their identified areas for development.
- 3. Where Partners require assistance to achieve improvement, support will be available from the Board and Partners.
- 4. Where Partners identify common or shared areas for development, the Board supports a task and finish group to plan and progress outcomes for individual Partners and the Board.

32. Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards Update

Jane Elliott Tonic provided the board with an update on DoLS data. The report includes a breakdown from April to December on the number of applications received from care homes and hospitals. The SAB DoLS task and finish group have met and plan to meet again in May. The Chair asked whether all agencies had a deep understanding of this agenda and the task and finish group would look at how agencies work together to reduce the impact.

The following comments were raised -

- it was forecast in May last year that there would be demand issues and how agencies would respond to the changes;
- it was suggested that local authority leads and clinical leads could put on a session for this board looking at this area in more detail;
- it was reported that the Board had responded to NHS England's request for bids to utilise funding targeted at the Mental Capacity Act and related agendas. The bid was for £8k and a response is awaited;

- that the report only gives a fraction of the picture and the 39 applications from Derriford Hospital were Plymouth patients. The problem was much bigger and more complex than this. The DoLS Officers all work very differently this was a real concern and we could all face a legal challenges;
- checks and balances were taking place and reassurance was provided that
 this was a high priority for the local authority. In terms of resources, whilst
 the numbers are a concern it was endeavoured to manage the high priority
 cases as soon as possible;
- this agenda came about following a Supreme Court judgement and there were currently no additional resources to deal with the consequent increase in demand. It was projected that there was no expectation that any government would address this issue until 2016/17.

Agreed that -

- 1. PSAB to further discuss the issues, with a view to looking at the risk and board accountability.
- 2. Discussion regarding whether the Board requires MCA/DoLS updates or presentations as a standing agenda item.
- 3. further discussion if the NHS bid is successful

33. **SAB Business 2015/16**

The Chair led a discussion on SAB Business for 2015-16. The core responsibility and role for this board was assurance regarding safeguarding and any work this board undertakes has to be aligned to the business planning and priorities for this board.

The following comments were made -

- DoLs was a concern with the lack of legal literacy across agencies. To consider awareness raising workshops; to address this;
- Given the transition to an integrated health and social care service from I April 2015, an established pathway was a high priority for policies and procedures;
- Information sharing protocol is under review in the context Care Act compliance;
- Review of multi-agency procedures was underway and the Policy and Procedure group were meeting next week to discuss this;
- Making Safeguarding Personal was an established agenda for the local authority, we now need to develop ways to roll the principles out across all agencies;

 undertake a review of the sub groups of the Board and look at benefits of links with the Plymouth Safeguarding Childrens Board.

Agreed that the Chair will work with Jane and others over the next few weeks to develop the business plan with a firm draft to be presented at the April meeting.

34. Any Other Business

None.

35. Future Agenda Items, Confirmation of Future Meetings

The board agreed future agenda items -

April Meeting -

- Potential MCA/DoLs presentation
- Strategic Plan Draft

The board <u>agreed</u> the change of date and time for future meeting to take place on a Thursday and commence at 10 am apart from the April meeting which will still take place on a Friday.

Friday 24 April 2015 Thursday 16 July 2015 Thursday 8 October 2015 Thursday 21 January 2016

The Chair welcomed suggestion for alternative venues for meetings.

36. **Exempt Business**

Agreed that under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act, 1972, the press and public are excluded from the meeting for the following item of business on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraph I of Part I of Schedule I2A of the Act, as amended by the Freedom of Information Act 2000.

37. **SCR Update**

The Board received an update on the Serious Case Review.